
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town Council  

FROM: David E. Cox, Town Manager  

DATE: November 17, 2022 

SUBJECT: Agenda Information – 11/22/2022 

The following is additional or summary information regarding matters on the upcoming Town Council 
Agenda.  The numbering below follows the agenda, and some routine or self-explanatory items are not 
discussed in this memo.  As you review your packet materials, please do not hesitate to contact the 
appropriate staff member or me prior to the Council meeting with any questions or concerns.  Often, 
these conversations can help staff and me be prepared for the Council meeting and be ready to facilitate 
a more productive and efficient meeting for everyone.  

7 Resolutions/Ordinances/Policies/Proclamations 
7a Consideration of a Resolution regarding an Additional Appropriation for the Middle School 
Roof Replacement Project – In follow up to actions taken in October in preparation for replacement of 
the Middle School roof and applying to the State for construction grants, the Council is asked to consider 
a resolution appropriating funds for the project and designating undesignated general fund balance to 
the Town’s portion of the project cost.  The Resolution, which also calls for the Special Town Meeting 
required for Additional Appropriations, identifies estimated project costs of $2.3 million, which would 
be expended out of the Capital Reserve Fund.  The updated pricing is based on an estimated cost of $25 
per square foot to replace the approximately 76,000 square foot roof plus a $5 per square foot 
contingency.  The cost of the project is offset by a grant expected to be received from the State in the 
amount of 50% of the project cost and the balance of the costs would be funded by a transfer of $1.15 
million from the General Fund unobligated reserve funds.  The transfer would leave these funds at about 
10.2% of the Town’s operating budget, which is within the policy of maintaining these funds between 
10% and 12% notwithstanding any amount that might be returned to the Fund at the end of the current 
fiscal year.  The required Town Meeting on this matter is proposed for Tuesday, December 13 beginning 
at 6:00 pm in advance of the Town Council meeting. 

Recommendation: Approve the Resolution recommending the appropriate and funding and 
setting the Town Meeting. 

8 Continued Business 
8b Presentation and Discussion Regarding Ambulance Association Operations – The Council will 
receive a presentation from the Ambulance Association and its consultant regarding current and future 
operations.  This is part of an ongoing discussion regarding the best way to provide ambulance service in 
the community.  After the presentation, the Council and members of the Association will have the 
opportunity to discuss the matter and determine an appropriate path forward. 



Town Council - Agenda Information – 11/22/2022 
November 17, 2022 
Page 2 

Recommendation:  Receive the presentation and discuss ambulance service in the community. 

8c Discussion and consideration of an Exploratory Committee related to land for a replacement 
Fire Station – The Council is asked to continue its discussion regarding establishing a committee to 
explore potential locations on which the Town could site a new, replacement fire station that will meet 
the Town’s current and future needs.  It is anticipated that the Fire Chief and chair of the Fire 
Commission will be present to aid in the discussion. 

9 New Business 
9a Consideration of actions related to a matter of pending claims or litigation  - In follow up to the 
Executive Session held earlier this evening, the Council may take action regarding resolution of the 
matter. 

9b Consideration of the 2023 meeting schedule – The Council is asked to consider a list of 
anticipated Regular Meeting dates in 2023, which is a standard and required practice of all public bodies 
in the state. 

Recommendation:  Approve the 2023 meeting schedule. 

11 Appointments 
11a Consideration of the appointment of Sean Flynn to the Middle School Roof Committee – In 
follow up to the Council’s last meeting and the previous action to create a small committee tasked with 
overseeing the planned Middle School roof replacement project, the Council is asked to appoint Sean 
Flynn as the public representative to the Committee.  As a reminder, the building committee was 
established to consist of a Board of Education member, a Town Council member, a member of the public 
and the Facilities Director who serves as ex officio and non-voting. 

Recommendation:  Appoint the public member. 

The remainder of the items are of a routine nature, in the sole purview of the Council or are 
announcements.  Please contact me or the appropriate staff member with questions or concerns. 



Town Council Regular Meeting 1 11/8/2022 Minutes 

Town of East Hampton 
Town Council Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, November 8, 2022 
Town Hall Council Chambers and Zoom 

MINUTES 

Present: Vice Chairman Tim Feegel, Council Members Pete Brown, Brandon Goff, Eric Peterson, 
Kevin Reich and Alison Walck and Town Manager David Cox 

Not Present:  Chairman Mark Philhower 

Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance 
Vice Chairman Feegel called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Town Hall Council Chambers 
and via Zoom. 

Adoption of Agenda 
A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Goff, to adopt the agenda as presented.  Voted 
(6-0) 

Approval of Minutes 
A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Goff, to approve the minutes of the Town 
Council Regular Meeting of October 25, 2022 as written. Voted (6-0) 

Public Remarks 
Russ Kaplan, 127 Comstock Trail and Chairman of the Clean Energy Task Force, provided a report 
to the Council outlining the success of the September Electric Vehicle Show sponsored by the Clean 
Energy Task Force.  Mr. Kaplan thanked the Town departments, the school and student volunteers 
for their work on the show. 

Presentations 
None 

Bids & Contracts 
None 

Resolution/ Ordinances/ Policies/ Proclamations 
Proclamation for Eagle Scout Timothy Thompson 
A motion was made by Mr. Peterson, seconded by Ms. Walck, to approve the proclamation for Eagle 
Scout Timothy Thompson.  Voted (6-0) 

Review & Consideration of the FY 2023-2024 Budget Policy Statement 
The Council reviewed the FY 2023-2024 Budget Policy Statement.  Mr. Reich asked for clarification 
of the first item under Guidelines that reads “Incorporate all contractual needs as the starting point 
of a zero-based top-down approach with a cap of a 1%-2% increase of wants, if justified”.  Mr. Cox 
noted that this would cover all contractual obligations including employee contracts, fuel and energy 
costs and information technology contracts to name a few.  The 1%-2% would be any modifications 
to programs.  

Agenda Item 3a



Town Council Regular Meeting 2 11/8/2022 Minutes 

A motion was made by Mr. Peterson, seconded by Ms. Walck, to adopt the FY 2023-2024 Budget 
Policy Statement as presented.  Voted (6-0) 

Resolution Authorizing an EPA Community Wide Assessment Grant Application Related to 
Brownfield Properties in the Village Center 
Ryan Baldassario, Chairman of the Brownfields Redevelopment Agency, provided an overview of 
the EPA Community Wide Assessment Proposal Narrative.  The application focuses on the former 
Summit Thread location at 13 Summit Street and 1 and 3 Watrous Street and the East Hampton Bell 
site at 3 Walnut Avenue. 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Goff, to adopt the resolution authorizing an 
EPA Community Wide Assessment Grant Application Related to Brownfield Properties in the 
Village Center.  Voted (6-0) 

Continued Business 
Sub-Committee Reports & Updates: 
Mr. Cox reported for the Water Sub-Committee that the well has been flushed and tested at Oakum 
Dock and reports should be coming soon. 

New Business 
Discussion and Consideration of an Exploratory Committee Related to Land for a 
Replacement Fire Station 
The Council is asked to discuss a proposed committee to explore potential locations for a new 
replacement fire station that will meet the Town’s current and future needs.  It was requested that 
the item be tabled until there is a formal presentation and request by the Fire Commission. It was 
suggested that the Town Manager advertise for interested residents to serve on the committee.  The 
older reports and studies that were done will be given to the Council members. 

A motion was made by Mr. Peterson, seconded by Mr. Goff, to table the item pending further 
information and a formal request from the Fire Commission.  Voted (6-0) 

Review and Consideration of a Proposed Survey by Youth & Family Services 
Director of Youth and Family Services Lauren Incognito provided an overview of a survey the 
department is proposing for parents in the community about the perceived needs for the community’s 
youth and how the department might develop programs and services to help address those needs. 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Goff, to approve the Youth & Family Services 
survey as presented.  Voted (6-0) 

Consideration and Action Regarding Police Department Policies/General Orders 6.14 and 6.5 
Police Chief Dennis Woessner provided an overview of General Orders 6.14 – Victim/Witness 
Assistance-Administration and 6.5 Property and Evidence Control. 

A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Goff, to approve the General Orders listed 
above as presented.  Voted (6-0) 

Town Manager’s Report 
Mr. Cox provided his written report for the Council members which will be included with the 
minutes filed in the Town Clerk’s Office.  



Town Council Regular Meeting 3 11/8/2022 Minutes 

Appointments 
Appointment of Sean Flynn to the Middle School Roof Committee 
A motion was made by Mr. Goff, seconded by Ms. Walck, to table the appointment of Mr. Flynn 
until an application for is received for review.  Voted (6-0) 

Tax Refunds 
A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Goff, to approve tax refunds in the amount of 
$893.83. Voted (6-0). 

Public Remarks 
None 

Communications, Correspondence & Announcements 
October 2022 Board and Commission Summary 
Council members received the 2022 October Board and Commission Summary. 

Adjournment 
A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Peterson, to adjourn the meeting at 7:10p.m. 
Voted (6-0). 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Cathy Sirois 
Recording Clerk 



RESOLUTION 

East Hampton Town Council 

A Resolution Regarding an Additional Appropriation 
For Middle School Roof Replacement and  

Establishing the Required Resolution 
and Special Town Meeting 

DRAFT – November 17, 2022 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Town Charter Section 4.1 and Town Code Section 

45-3,  any single or group of additional appropriations in excess of $25,000 in a
given fiscal year shall be acted upon by the Town Meeting, and

WHEREAS, the Town of East Hampton (“Town”) desires to appropriate 
$2,300,000 to costs associated with replacement of the roof at the East Hampton 
Middle School using funds available in the unassigned general fund balance of 
the Town in addition to grant funds, and  

WHEREAS, the request is made by the Board of Education and was 
considered by the Board of Finance at its meeting on November 21, 2022 at which 
the Board of Finance recommended to appropriate the funds as described herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town of East Hampton 
Town Council that the Town Meeting of the Town of East Hampton consider and 
act upon the following Resolution, which the Council hereby recommends be 
approved and which the Town Council hereby adopts. 

Town of East Hampton 
Town Meeting 

Resolution Of The Town Meeting To Appropriate $2,300,000 From The 
Capital Reserve Fund For The Purpose Of Replacement Of The East 

Hampton Middle School Roof 

Resolved, the Town of East Hampton Town Meeting hereby appropriates 
$2,300,000 from the Capital Reserve Fund for costs in connection with 
improvements to the East Hampton Middle School consisting of the replacement 
of all or portions of the roof; and that the Town anticipates receiving State 
Department of Education grants in the amount of $1,150,000 to defray in part 
the appropriation for the project and that the Town appropriate $1,150,000 from 
unassigned general fund balance to finance the balance of the appropriation.  The 
appropriation may be spent for design, construction, materials, equipment, 
engineering, architect and other consultant fees, legal fees, and other expenses 

Agenda Item 7a



related to the project and any funds not expended to this purpose shall remain in 
the Capital Reserve Fund for other purposes. 
 

******************************************************* 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Town Council hereby authorizes and 
directs that the Chairperson of the  Town Council call for a Special Town Meeting 
to be held on Tuesday, December 13, 2022 beginning at 6:00 pm at the Town Hall 
Council Chambers to act upon the foregoing Resolution. 
 
Approved this 22nd day of November, 2022. 
 
TOWN COUNCIL 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Mark Philhower, Chairperson 

ATTEST 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Kelly Bilodeau, Town Clerk 



Agenda Item 8c



































Town of East Hampton 

Town Council 
2023 Meeting Dates 

Location:  Town Hall Council Chambers 
2nd and 4th Tuesday of Each Month 

6:30pm 

January 10 
January 24 
February 14 
February 28 

March 14 
March 28 
April 11 
April 25 
May 9 
May 23 
June 13 
June 27 
July 11 
July 25 

August 8  
Summer Recess (no meeting August 22) 

September 12  
September 26 

October 10 
October 24 

November 14 
November 28 
December 12 

Winter Recess (no meeting December 26) 

Agenda Item 9b



Agenda Item 11a







Agenda Item 12




